
Lapeer City Commission Agenda 
May 20, 2024 

Page 1 

 
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAPEER 
CITY COMMISSION 

576 LIBERTY PARK, LAPEER, MI 48446 
MAY 20, 2024 

 
6:30 P.M. CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF MAY 20, 2024, AGENDA  
 
A. MINUTES: 
 1. Minutes of the Regular meeting held May 6, 2024.  
  
B. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

1. Lapeer County Commissioner - Brad Haggadone. 
 

C. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 1. Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement – Direct TV. 
 2. Fixed Asset Disposal – 1991 Ford F350 Brush Truck – Fire Department. 
 3. Fixed Asset Disposal – 2018 Ford Utility – Building Department. 
 4. Fixed Asset Disposal – 2016 Ford Utility – DPW. 
 5. Fixed Asset Disposal – 2016 Case Backhoe with attachments - DPW. 
 6. Fixed Asset Disposal – 2016 Komatsu Wheeled Loader - DPW. 
 7. Fixed Asset Disposal – 2005 Cummins Onan Generator 100kw - DPW. 
 8. Special Event – Great Lakes Music Studio Recital – Annrook Park – June 2, 2024. 
 9. Special Event – American Legion Post – Memorial Day Parade – May 27, 2024. 
 10. DTE Easement Right of Way – John Conley - L20-83-358-080-40. 
 11. Delinquent Special Assessments – add to 2024 Tax Roll. 

12. Boundary Transfer - 35 S. Court Street and 130 Howard St.  
13. Charitable Gaming License – Love Inc. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
Approve the Consent Agenda for May 20, 2024. 
  

D. BILL LISTING: 
 1. Bill Listing for May 20, 2024. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Approve the Bill Listing for May 20, 2024, in the amount of $407,908.18. 

 
E. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS: 
 
F. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
G. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
 1. Budget Amendment for FY2023-24. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION: ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Approve the budget amendment for FY23-24, as presented. 
 

2. Commitment to Purchase – Caterpillar (Cat) Loader. 
 



Lapeer City Commission Agenda 
May 20, 2024 

Page 2 

SUGGESTED MOTION: ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Approve the commitment to purchase a Caterpillar Loader, not to exceed $255,000, and 
authorize the Department of Public Works Director or City Manager to sign on behalf of 
the City. 

 
3. Rowden Park Pathway Project – Additions to Scope - Spark Grant. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Approve adding additional scope items to the Rowden Park Linear Pathway Project 
funded by the Spark Grant, not to exceed $389,685.20, the remaining grant balance. 
 

4. Sidewalk Repair and Replacement – Precision Concrete Cutting. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Approve the contract with Precision Concrete Cutting for sidewalk repair and 
replacement, not to exceed $35,000, and authorize the Department of Public Works 
Director or City Manager to sign on behalf of the City. 
 

5. Parking Lot #5 – T.G. Priehs Asphalt 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Approve the proposal from T.G. Priehs Asphalt, as presented for Parking Lot #5;   
repave, drainage improvements, and green space creation, not to exceed $271,850.00, 
and authorize the Department of Public Works Director or City Manager to sign on 
behalf of the City. 

 
H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

1. Freshwater Gardens.  
 2. Various matters. 
 
I. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 
 1. Various matters. 
 
J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 1. Appointments to Boards and Commissions. 
 
K. DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Monthly Departmental Reports.  
 
L. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 
M. CLOSING COMMENTS: 
 1. Commissioners. 
 2. City Manager. 
 3. Mayor. 
 
N. REMINDER OF MEETINGS: 
 Next City Commission Meeting: MONDAY, JUNE 3, 2024, Regular 
 
O. REMINDER OF PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MATERIAL TRANSMITTAL  
 
Notice:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation through electronic means in this meeting should contact the City 
Clerk at (810) 664-5231 or by email at clerk@ci.lapeer.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
May 6, 2024 

Page 1 
 

LAPEER CITY COMMISSION 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 6, 2024 
 

A regular meeting of the Lapeer City Commission was held May 6, 2024, at the Lapeer City 
Hall, 576 Liberty Park, Lapeer, Michigan.  The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Marquardt. 
 Commissioners:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Absent: None. 
 
City Manager:  Mike Womack, present. 
City Attorney:   T. Allen Francis, present. 
 
Mayor Marquardt led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
100 2024 05-06  AGENDA APPROVAL 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Brady. 
Approve the Agenda for May 6, 2024, as presented. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
101 2024 05-06  MINUTES 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the minutes of the regular meeting held April 15, 2024, with correction to motion 96 
2024 04-15 Moved by Brady Glisman (corrected on 05-06-24). 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Boris and Yana Yakubchik gave a presentation on traffic calming.  
 
Mindy Schwab, a member of the DDA, gave an update on events and happenings of the 
Downtown Development Authority and gave an invocation.  
 
Michael Higgins, 334 Old Farm Lane, spoke about a marihuana odor petition that residents of 
Andrew’s River Estates have signed.  
 
Iselda Esquivel, Wayne State University’s AmeriCorps Urban Safety Program, spoke about 
their water filter education project for residents of the city.   
 
Tim Denney spoke about the marihuana businesses.   
  
102 2024 05-06  CONSENT AGENDA 
Moved by Atwood.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the consent agenda for May 6, 2024, as presented: 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
May 6, 2024 

Page 2 
 

 1. Special Event: Lapeer Community Schools – Swing Out – June 4, 2024. 
 2. Downtown Development Authority Operating Budget FY2024-2025. 
 3. City of Lapeer component Units FY2024-25 and FY2023-24 Amendments (LDFA, TIFA, 

EDC). 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
103 2024 05-06  BILL LISTING 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Petrie. 
Approve the bill listing for May 6, 2024, in the amount of $316,000.14. 
ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PROCLAMATION, RECOGNITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS: 
104 2024 05-06  PROCLAMATION – RECOGNITION OF DR. MARK BRANIECKI 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Petrie. 
Adopt the proclamation in recognition of Dr. Mark Braniecki for his dedication to the City of 
Lapeer and the Lapeer Community.  
 

CITY OF LAPEER 
Proclamation 

In Recognition of Dr. Mark Braniecki 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Mark Braniecki, has dedicated 35 years of his life to the Lapeer Community; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Braniecki has been practicing medicine in the City of Lapeer since 1989; and  
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Braniecki has served the community as a pediatrician and that time was 
marked by exemplary and energetic leadership; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dr. Braniecki has provided conscientious, responsible, and professional service 
to his patients and leaves those in the Lapeer community proud to have known him and where 
his presence in the community will be missed.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Mayor Debbie Marquardt, and the Lapeer City 
Commission, on behalf of the people of the City of Lapeer express gratitude and deep 
appreciation to Dr. Braniecki for his efforts and devotion to our community and wish him 
continued success in his retirement.   
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
105 2024 05-06  FY2024-2025 BUDGET – PUBLIC HEARING 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
May 6, 2024 

Page 3 
 

Mayor Marquardt opened the public hearing at 6:55 p.m. 
 
There being no comments from the audience, the public hearing was closed at 6:56 p.m. 
 
Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Brady. 
Adopt the Budget Resolution of the City of Lapeer for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and make 
appropriations therefore, and the first year of the proposed Capital Improvement Program FY 
2024-2025 through FY 2029-2030. 
 

RESOLUTION #2024-10 
GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT 

 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE BUDGET 

OF THE CITY OF LAPEER FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
JULY 1, 2024, TO JUNE 30, 2025 

AND TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS THEREFORE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Charter requires:  That the City Manager submit a budget proposal with 
his recommendation to the City Commission; that a public hearing be held on said budget 
proposal; that the City Commission by resolution adopt a budget for the ensuing fiscal year, 
making an appropriation of the money needed therefore, and designating the sum to be raised 
by taxation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted said budget and recommendations along with the 
proposed tax millage to be levied and a public hearing has been held thereon: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as provided in the City Charter, and in conformity to 
Public Act 621 of 1978, the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, that the budgets attached 
hereto and made a part hereof by reference are hereby considered and adopted, to be 
administered on fund level, as the budgets of the City of Lapeer to cover the operations and 
expenditures thereof for the fiscal year July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in addition to the levy of a City Income Tax in accordance 
with the State’s Uniform City Income Tax Act, the sum of $3,452,000 be raised by taxation from 
the levy of 9.8000 mills on the ad Valorum tax roll and 4.9000 mills on the IFT tax roll for 
operations on the assessed value of all real and personal property in the City as follows: 
 
 General Operation ........................ 9.8000 mills .......................$3,440,000 
 General Operation ........................ 4.9000 mills .......................$     12,000 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager be authorized to transfer necessary 
amounts between activities (departments) within a fund and up to $5,000 between funds. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this budget resolution be furnished to the City 
Assessor, who together with the City Treasurer, shall then proceed to assess and collect the 
taxes in accordance with the City Charter and State Statutes. 
ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Ayes:  Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell, Atwood. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
May 6, 2024 

Page 4 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
106 2024 05-06  CITY OF LAPEER FEE SCHEDULE 
Moved by Petrie.  Seconded by Glisman. 
Approve the City of Lapeer Fee Schedule, effective July 1, 2024, as presented.  
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
107 2024 05-06  MT. HOPE CEMETERY ROAD REPAIR  
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the proposal from T.G. Priehs for the repair and re-pavement of several roads at Mt. 
Hope Cemetery, for a cost not to exceed $98,900. and authorize the Director of Parks, 
Recreation, and Cemetery to work on the project agreement. 
ON A ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Ayes:  Glisman, Petrie, Swindell, Atwood, Brady. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
108 2024 05-06  COUNTY PAVILION LEASE AGREEMENT 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the lease agreement with the County of Lapeer for the County Pavilion for a five-year 
term, May 2024 through May 2029, and authorize the Mayor and City Manager to sign on behalf 
of the City of Lapeer. 
ON A ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Ayes:  Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell, Atwood. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
109 2024 05-06  SPECIAL EVENT:  HISTORIC FARMERS MARKET  
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Atwood. 
Approve the Special Event for the Historic Farmers Market to be held on Wednesdays & 
Saturdays from 9 am - 3 pm from May through October 2024. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
City Manager Womack commented that he has been returning emails now that he has returned.  
Chief Vogt did an excellent job along with all City staff in his absence.  He and the City Attorney 
work great together and have been working together on several items. Appreciates the 
passage of the budget tonight; it’s a solid budget invested in infrastructure.  Feels the City is 
heading in the right direction.   
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
City Attorney Francis stated that there will be items in the near future that he will be providing 
updates on, however, he does not have any this evening.  Communication with the City 
Manager and Department Heads is going well. Asked if the Commission had any questions 
this evening.   
 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
May 6, 2024 

Page 5 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None.  
 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
The DDA Monthly Departmental Report, Quarterly Financial Report, and the Quarterly 
Investment Reports were received into the record. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Bryan Cloutier spoke about planning, zoning, and code enforcement relating to marihuana 
businesses.    
 
MAYOR/COMMISSIONER COMMENTS  
Commissioner Glisman: Looking forward to working with Director R. Church and all the 
members of the cemetery board.  She visited Mt. Hope Cemetery, and it certainly does need 
road improvement, thanked all those involved in increasing the budget for the repairs.  After 
the winter it could use some sprucing up and hopes the community will get involved in helping.  
She takes historical preservation seriously and feels the cemetery can reflect on the heritage 
and families of Lapeer. Hopes to find graves of American Veterans and honor the commitment 
they made to the community.   
 
Commissioner Petrie:  Welcomed City Attorney Francis, glad to have him here.  Welcomed the 
members of the audience for coming tonight.  Thanked Boris Yakubchik for bringing his ideas 
to the Commission.  Thanked Chief Vogt for all the extra he has done.  Always says a prayer 
for everyone involved when she hears sirens. Wants to set the record straight regarding a 
comment made in sound off, it is not a waste of money to have the City Attorney in attendance 
at Commission meetings.   
 
Commissioner Swindell:  The weather is warming up and more and more people are outside; 
many people are downtown at the car show; be careful and watch for pedestrians all around. 
Loves the beautification idea that was presented this evening.  May is Ehlers-Danlos Syndrome 
month, which both she and her son have.  Recently met with a group of kids at the high school 
who have the same thing, they asked that people be aware of this syndrome and want to bring 
awareness to it.   
 
Commissioner Atwood:  Thanked Chief Vogt for stepping in while Mr. Womack was out.  
Thanked the staff for working so hard on the budget together.  Thanked the audience for their 
public comments.  This is the first time a resident brought a project to the commission who is 
willing to do the work.  
 
City Manager Womack:  Road diets are something he is interested in, not sure if the suggestion 
tonight will work because of the Michigan Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MMUTCD), however, there are certainly ways to make the city more pedestrian-friendly and 
slow down traffic. We love art and recommend Mr. Yakubchik introduce his wife to the DDA 
director. Stated that he believes Mr. Cloutier is correct that the city has some work to do on 
planning and zoning especially related to marihuana. Recommends Commissioner Glisman 
visit the City of Brighton’s cemetery as they have a self-walking tour.  He visited Japan on his 
vacation and appreciated having the time off.  
 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
May 6, 2024 

Page 6 
 

Mayor Marquardt:  Rowden Park will be closed until May 22, 2024.  Read the list of local events 
taking place around the community.  Congratulated Clerk Sanchez on her advancement to 
Michigan Professional Municipal Clerk (MiPMC) Level 3 with the Michigan Association of 
Municipal Clerks; thanked her for dedication to the City of Lapeer and appreciates all she does.  
Wants everyone to be aware that steps are being taken regarding the marihuana grow facilities. 
Thanked Chief Vogt for all he did while serving as acting City Manager during Mr. Womack’s 
vacation.  Feels the budget and CIP were well done and happy that both were adopted. 
 
110 2024 05-06  ADJOURNMENT 
Having no further business, Mayor Marquardt adjourned the regular meeting at 7:24 p.m.   
 
 
              
Debbie Marquardt, Mayor     Romona Sanchez, City Clerk 



ITEM C-1 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\C-1 Uniform Video - Franchise Agree.docx 
 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Romona Sanchez, City Clerk 
Date: May 10, 2024 
RE: Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement and authorize the City Manager to sign 
said Agreement. 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
DirectTV is filing for the Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement under the terms and 
conditions of the uniform agreement established by the State of Michigan.  Michigan legislature passed 
Uniform Video Services Franchise Act (2006 Public Act 480) which became effective January 1, 2007.  
The last renewal request by DirectTV was in August 2021. 
 
The Franchise Fees to be requested by the City will remain at 5% which is the full amount allowable.  
The PEG Fees will remain at 0% as the City does not operate a PEG channel on the cable system. 
 
 
 
  
BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION  
None.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 13, 2024 
 Consent: X 
Administrative:  Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing:  
 

































Interoffice Memo     ITEM C-2 
 

 

 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:     Jeff Graham, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Sale of 1991 Ford F 350 Brush Truck  

                                                                                                                                             
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Commission approve the sale of the 1991 Ford Brush 
Truck. 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The Department of Public Works is requesting permission to sell a 1991 Ford F350 Brush 
Truck. Estimated value of $11,000 to $26,000 dollars Unit number is #141 City Asset # is 
300059.  This item will be replaced with F350 2023 Brush Truck in CIP 2023/2024.  In 
approving this item for disposal, it will be sold on an auction site through Govdeals. 
 
EQUIPMENT: 1991 FORD F350 
Department:  Fire Dept  
Year:    1991 
Vin:    2FDKF38M7MCA25410    
CITY ASSET: #300059 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date:  May 20, 2024       Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:   X 
Administrative:           Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 

 



Interoffice Memo     ITEM C-3 
 

 

 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:     Jeff Graham, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Sale of 2018 Ford Utility  

                                                                                                                                             
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 It is recommended that the City Commission approve the sale of 2018 Ford Utility. 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The Department of Public Works is requesting permission to sell 2018 Ford utility. 
Estimated value of $6,700 to $10,000 dollars.  Unit number is #14 City Asset # is 300013.  
This item will be replaced by F250 asset number #300020 transfer from the Water Dept.  
In approving this item for disposal, it will be sold on an auction site through Govdeals. 
 
EQUIPMENT: 2018 FORD UTILITY 
Department:   Building Dept  
Year:        2018 
Vin:      1FM5K8ARXJGB19433    
CITY ASSET:  #300013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date: May 20, 2024        Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  X 
Administrative:           Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 

 



Interoffice Memo    ITEM C-4 
 

 

 
 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:     Jeff Graham, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Sale of 2016 Ford Utility  

                                                                                                                                             
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 It is recommended that the City Commission approve the sale of 2016 Ford Utility. 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The Department of Public Works is requesting permission to sell 2016 Ford utility. 
Estimated value of $5,000 to $9,000 dollars.  Unit number is #26 City Asset # is 300012. 
This item was replaced with #18 asset number 300065. In approving this item for disposal, 
it will be sold on an auction site through Govdeals. 
 
EQUIPMENT: 2016 FORD UTILITY 
Department:   DPW  
Year:        2016 
Vin:      1FM5K8AR3GGC08091    
CITY ASSET:  #300012 
 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date: May 20, 2024        Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  X 
Administrative:           Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 

 



Interoffice Memo    ITEM C-5 
 

 

 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:     Jeff Graham, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Sale of 2016 Case Backhoe with attachments 

                                                                                                                                             
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Commission approve the sale of the 2016 Case Backhoe 
with attachments.   
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The Department of Public Works is requesting permission to sell the 2016 Case Backhoe 
with attachments.  Estimated value of $55,000 to $60,000 dollars.  Unit number is #3 City 
Asset is #400003 and will be replaced with 2024/2025 CIP mini excavator.  This item will 
be sold with attachments 309, 310, 311 with asset numbers 200036, 200015, 200016. In 
approving this item for disposal, it will be sold on an auction site through Govdeals. 
 
EQUIPMENT: 2016 CASE BACKHOE WITH ATTACHMENTS 
Department:   DPW  
Year:        #3, 309, 310, 311    2016 
Vin:        # JJGN59SNHFC724253 
CITY ASSET:  #400003, 200036, 200015, 200016 
 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date: May 20, 2024        Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  X 
Administrative:           Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 

 



Interoffice Memo    ITEM C-6 
 

 

 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:     Jeff Graham, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Sale of 2016 Komatsu Wheeled Loader 

                                                                                                                                             
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Commission approve the sale of the 2016 Komatsu 
wheeled loader.   
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The Department of Public Works is requesting permission to sell the 2016 Komatsu 
wheeled loader.  Estimated value of $85,000 to $90,000 dollars.  Unit number is #36 City 
Asset # is #400002 and will be replaced with 2024/2025 CIP.  This is being sold due to 
the number of repairs that may be coming in near future and the ability to perform the 
task that the new loader will be handling.  In approving this item for disposal, it will be sold 
on an auction site through Govdeals. 
 
EQUIPMENT: 2016 KOMATSU WHEELED LOADER 
Department:   DPW  
Year:        #36    2016 
Vin:        # KMTWA126VGA081264 
CITY ASSET:  #400002 
 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date: May 20, 2024        Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  X 
Administrative:           Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 

 



Interoffice Memo    ITEM C-7 
 

 

 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:     Jeff Graham, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Sale of 2005 Cummins Onan Generator 100kw 

                                                                                                                                             
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Commission approve the sale of Asset #307 Cummins 
Onan 100kw Generator.  
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The Department of Public Works is requesting permission to sell 2005 Cummins Onan 
100kw generator.  Estimated value of $8,000 to $10,000 dollars.  Unit number is #307  
City Asset # is 300035.  In approving this item for disposal, it will be sold on an auction 
site through Govdeals. 
 
EQUIPMENT: CUMMINS ONAN 100KW GENERATOR 
Department:   DPW  
Year:        #307 
Vin:      
CITY ASSET:  #300035 
 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date: May 20, 2024        Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  X 
Administrative:           Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 

 



ITEM C-8  
To: Michael Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe – Chief of Police 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Music Recital Annrook Park 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the event. 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
We have received a request from Great Lakes Music Studio to hold a music recital in Annrook 
Park on June 2, 2024 from 12pm to 7pm. The event will consist of music by individual student 
performers and bands, games and food. Event organizers are requesting eight picnic tables 
and electricity.  The park/pavilion have been reserved.  The event is expected to bring 200 
attendees.      
 
BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION  
 Annual event.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date: 5/20/2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
 Consent: X 
 Administrative: Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 
 













ITEM C-9
To: Michael Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: May 15, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Memorial Day Parade 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To Approve the event.  

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
We have received a request from the American Legion Post #16 to have the Memorial Day 
Parade on Monday, May 27, 2024 from 9:30 am until approximately 12:30 pm.  Parade line up 
to start at 9:30 am on Nepessing Street east of South Saginaw Street.  Parade route will be 
west bound Nepessing Street up to Veterans Park where a ceremony will be held.  
This event will require services from the Police Department for traffic control and from the DPW 
for barricades.  

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Annual event 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent: X 

 Administrative: Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 











ITEM C-10 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\C-9 DTE Easement.docx 

To: City Commission 
From: Mike Womack-City Manager 
Date: May 15, 2024 
RE: DTE Electric Company Overhead Easement (Right of Way) 

No. #69999370 SRW# 69999822 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the proposed DTE Easement Right of Way as presented. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
DTE is requesting to install two anchors and guy-lines to support the first pole or two exiting 
out of their upcoming electrical substation (that has already been approved of by the Planning 
Commission).  The current existing easement is just a few feet too small on either side to allow 
for the installation of these site safety improvements.  There appears to be minimal impact on 
the City’s property and should pose no real impact on any future development on this site when 
sold. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
There is an existing easement on this property which covers the existing power-line that is 
already in place and is notated on the pre-existing easement document and recorded at Liber 
619 page 527. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent: X 

Administrative:  Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing:  





1 Rev. 08/2015  

 
 
 
 
 
 

DTE Electric Company Overhead Easement (Right of Way) No. #69999370 SRW# 69999822 
 

On  , 2024, for the consideration of system betterment, Grantor grants to Grantee a permanent, non-exclusive 
overhead easement ("Right of Way") in, on, and across that part of Grantor's Land to be referred to herein as the "Right of Way Area". 

"Grantor" is: The City of Lapeer, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 576 Liberty Park., Lapeer, MI 
48446 

 
"Grantee" is: DTE Electric Company, a Michigan corporation, One Energy Plaza, Detroit, Michigan 48226 

"Grantor's Land" is in the NE 1/4, Section 12, Town 7 N, Range 9 E, City of Lapeer, County of Lapeer, and State of Michigan, 
and is described as follows: 

 
PARCEL ID #: L20-83-358-080-40 (CITY OF LAPEER) 10.15 AC COMMONLY KNOWN AS REMAINDER PARCEL 12/31/2018 
SPLIT FROM : L20-83-358-080-00 PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, T7N-R9E, CITY OF LAPEER, LAPEER 
COUNTY MICHIGAN MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS COMMENCING AT THE EAST 1/4 CORNER OF SAID 
SECTION 12; THENCE N02°28'17"W, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION, 784.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE S53°18'40"W 735.19 FEET; THENCE N00°44'O6"W 329.69 FEET; THENCE S83°50'43"W 86.15 FEET; 
THENCE N29°17'13"E 1151.68 FEET; THENCE N87°31'44"E 77.73 FEET TO SAID EAST SECTION LINE; THENCE 
S02°28'17"E, ALONG SAID EAST SECTION LINE, 889.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINS 10.15 ACRES. 
BEING SUBJECT TO ANY RESTRICTIONS, EASEMENTS AND/OR RIGHTS OF WAY OF RECORD. (tax description) 

Identification Number(s): L20-83-358-080-40 
More commonly known as: V/L John Conley Drive., Lapeer, MI 48446 

 
The "Right of Way Area" is a Twelve (12’) foot wide easement and 2 anchor/guys at forty-five (45) feet and 2 anchor/guys 

at forty-nine (49) feet on part of Grantor's Land. The centerline of the Right of Way Area shall be established in the as- built location 
of the centerline of Grantee's facilities, and shall be installed on Grantor's Land in the approximate location described as follows: 

 
EASEMENT DRAWING IS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A 
PART HEREOF. 

1. Purpose: The purpose of this Right of Way is to construct, reconstruct, modify, add to, repair, replace, inspect, operate and maintain 
overhead utility facilities which may consist of poles, guys, anchors, wires, transformers and accessories. 
2. Access: Grantee has the right of pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress to and from the Right of Way Area over and across 
Grantor’s Land.  Provided, Grantee shall repair all damage caused to Grantor’s Land, including any improvements thereon, caused by 
Grantee or Grantee’s employees, agents, or subcontractors and restore the same to substantially the same condition as existed prior to 
such damage. 
3. Buildings or other Permanent Structures: No buildings or other permanent structures or improvements may be constructed or 
placed in the Right of Way Area without Grantee's prior, written consent. Grantor agrees, at its own expense, to remove any 
improvement that interferes with the safe and reliable operation, maintenance and repair of Grantee's facilities upon the written demand 
of Grantee. If Grantor fails to comply with such demand, Grantor agrees that Grantee may remove any such improvement and bill 
Grantor for the cost thereof, which cost Grantor shall pay within thirty (30) days after demand therefor. 
4. Excavation: Pursuant to 2013 Public Act 174, MISS DIG (1-800-482-7171 or 811 in some areas) must be called before any 
excavation in the Right of Way Area may proceed. 

Trees, Bushes, Branches, Roots, Structures and Fences: Grantee may trim, cut down, remove or otherwise control any trees, bushes, 
branches and roots growing or that could grow or fall in the Right of Way Area and remove any structures, improvements, fences, 
buildings or landscaping in the Right of Way Area that Grantee believes could interfere with the safe and reliable construction, operation, 
maintenance and repair of Grantee's facilities. Grantee shall not be responsible for any damage to, or removal of, landscaping, trees, 



2 Rev. 08/2015  

plant life, structures, improvements and/or fences located in the Right of Way Area. 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Restoration: If Grantee's agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, vehicles or equipment damage Grantor's Land while 
entering upon or exiting Grantor's Land for the purposes stated in this Right of Way, then Grantee will restore Grantor's Land as nearly 
as is reasonably practicable to the condition in which it existed prior to such damage. Restoration with respect to paved surfaces shall 
consist of asphalt cold patching of the damaged portion of any asphalted surfaces when the weather conditions suggest such use and the 
cement patching of the damaged portion of any cemented surfaces. Grantee shall have no liability, however, for the restoration or cost 
of any improvements located within the Right of Way Area, including, but not limited to, parking islands, gutters, fences or landscaping 
such as trees, bushes, or flowers (but not a simple lawn which, if damaged, will be patched and re-seeded by Grantee) that are damaged 
by Grantee in the course of constructing, reconstructing, modifying, adding to, repairing, replacing, operating or maintaining its facilities 
as described in paragraph 1 above. 
6. Successors and Assigns: This Right of Way runs with the land and binds and benefits Grantor's and Grantee's successors and assigns. 
7. Exemptions: This Right of Way is exempt from transfer tax pursuant to MCL 207.505(a) and MCL 207.526(a). 
8. Governing Law: This Right of Way shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan. 

 
 

Grantor: The City of Lapeer, a Michigan Municipal Corporation 
 

 
By:   (sign) 

Name:  (print) 

Title:    

 

Drafted by and when recorded, return to: Holly Stacer, DTE Electric, 1100 Clark Rd, Lapeer, MI 48446 

Acknowledged before me  County, Michigan, on  , 2024, by 
 
 , the  of The City of Lapeer, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation. 

Notary's 
Stamp   

Notary's 
Signature   

Acting in  County, Michigan 



L20-83-358-080-40
City of Lapeer

JOHN CONLEY DR

E 1/4 COR
SEC 12

T7N-R9E

748.01'

735.19'

329.69'

86.15'

11
51

.6
8'

77.73'
889.55'

138.76'

591.40'

455.88'
59

3.
19

'

EXHIBIT "A"

10
5'

DR
IVEW

AY

30
'

5'

L20-83-358-080-30
DTE Electric Co

INSTALL POLES.
INSTALL ANCHORS @ 45 & 49 FT.

POB

CENTERLINE OF EXISTING 12 FT WIDE
OVERHEAD EASEMENT ALONG WITH 
15 FT EITHER SIDE OF EASEMENT
CENTERLINE FOR TREE CLEARANCE.

Work Order #

Service Center

Worksite City

Town

Circuit #1

Range Section Qtr

Circuit #2

Worksite Twp. Worksite County

Plot Date Scale

SRW RSD PH PLC

COH COS CUG CUL CUS

Planner Name

Work Order Description

CUE Request # Version

GIS-DSN

SCMAT
                                                            

                                        LAPEER COUNTY

69999824                 69999832                 

69999836                                                                 

Install Cable Poles for APOLO DC9566, DC9675 T.O.,DC867669999370
                                   

LAPEER CITY

69999822

                

1" = 150'7N 9E 12 NE 11439573Jones, Jeanette 3/25/2024

 LAPER8774LAP

PROPOSED ANCHOR

TREE

FOREIGN POLE
EXISTING ANCHOR

PROPOSED POLE
EXISTING DECO POLE

LEGEND

40 KV LINE

13.2 KV LINE

4.8 KV LINE

120/240 V LINE

OF 12 FT WIDE



ITEM C-11 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Delinquent Special Assessments to be added to the 2024 Tax Roll 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend City Commission Approval. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
Attached is the list of 2017 Special Assessment installments which were delinquent as of May 20, 2024.  
It is recommended that these amounts be added to the 2024 Summer Tax Roll as authorized by City 
Charter. 

Please advise if you have any questions or require further information. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent: 

 Administrative: X Reviewed By: Dana Jansen, Deputy City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 
S:\City Logo\City Logo 2021\Templates\Memo\Agenda Memo.docx 



(10/2/2023 to 4/30/2024)
Principal Interest Collection  7 Months
Due by Due by Fee Penalty Total + 5% Total To

Dist. # Name Property # 10/01/23 10/01/23 (once a yr) *(1) 05/01/24 Tax Roll Tax Roll

2017 Special Assessments - FUND 202

(7th Installment)

17-02 Phillips, Scott & Elizabeth 20-33-400-040-00 481.32$     42.36$      4.81$        36.66$       565.15$     28.26$       593.41$     
17-02 Spurlock, Golden H. 20-38-100-040-00 481.32$     42.36$      4.81$        36.66$       565.15$     28.26$       593.41$     
17-03 Blind Fish Real Estate Hldgs LLC 20-94-701-050-00 283.47$     24.94$      2.83$        21.59$       332.83$     16.64$       349.47$     

.
TOTAL - 2017 Special Assessments 1,246.11$  109.66$    12.45$      94.91$       1,463.13$  73.16$       1,536.29$  

CITY OF LAPEER

2024
Delinquent Special Assessment Roll



ITEM C-12 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\G-7 Boundary Transfer - Zock.docx 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Denise Marinelli, Assessor 
Date: April 26, 2024 
RE: Split Request – 35 S Court & 130 Howard St. Parcel #L21-24-400-040-10 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval as Requested. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
I have reviewed the parcel split request submitted by Derrick Zock, owner of the property. The 
request is for a change of platted lots and must be approved by the City Commission. The City 
Commission has full discretionary authority to approve or deny the request as the deem proper. 
The request is for a parcel split of an improved lot at 35 South Court Street and a vacant lot 
fronting Howard Street. The parcel was created in 2022 after the Commission approved a 
combination of the two lots to allow for a building expansion at 35 South Court Street and a 
change of use for a marihuana grow facility. The plans were abandoned, and the owner is now 
requesting the property return to its previous description. The current building sits on Lot 12 
and Lot 13 of the Jennings’s Addition Plat. 
All application requirements have been met including before and after survey, legal 
descriptions, County Certification letters, and all fees have been paid. The property is currently 
zoned I-1 Industrial and will remain so. There is a request before the Planning Commission to 
allow a special use of this property and allow the continued use of the property as an apartment 
building in a Mixed-Use District. 
I have consulted with City Planner, Ben Keller, who approved this split request as it would not 
adversely affect any zoning or easement issues known to them at this time. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION  
The current legal descriptions for the subject properties are as follows: 
L21-24-400-040-10  City of Lapeer Jenning’s Addition, Lots 12, 13  & 14, Block 1 (l=9 
p=598, Section 5, T7N-R9E)
The requested new description is as follows: 
L21-24-400-040-20  City of Lapeer Jenning’s Addition, Lots 12 & 13, Block 1 (l=9 p=598, 
Section 5, T7N-R9E) 
L21-24-600-040-10  City of Lapeer Jenning’s Addition, Lot 14, Block 1 (l=9 p=598, Section 
5, T7N-R9E) 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 16, 2024 
Consent:  

Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing:  



RESOLUTION # 2024-11 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE  
BOUNDARY TRANSFER REQUEST 
 FOR DERRICK ZOCK 
35 SOUTH COURT & 140 HOWARD ST 

 
 
At a regular meeting of the Lapeer City Commission on Monday, May 20, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. in 
the City Commission Chambers of Lapeer City Hall, 576 Liberty Park, Lapeer, Michigan. 
 
PRESENT: 
ABSENT: 
 
MOVED BY: Commissioner SECONDED BY: Commissioner 
 
WHEREAS, Derrick Zock, owner of the property located at 35 South Court Street & 140 Howard 
Street, has filed a Boundary Transfer Request for a parcel split; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 6 (Land Division Ordinance), Section 6.05 Lot Splits, of the General 
Ordinances of the City of Lapeer, provides that approval shall be by resolution of the City 
Commission. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Boundary Transfer Request is in conformity with Chapter 7 (Zoning 
Ordinance) of the General Ordinances of the City of Lapeer. 

 
2. That the Boundary Transfer Request is in conformity with The Land Division Act of 

P.A. 288 of 1967, as amended. 
 
3. That the Boundary Transfer Request is approved resulting in the following legal 

description: 
 

L21-24-400-040-20  City of Lapeer, Jenning’s Addition, Lots 12 & 13, Block 1  
(l=9 p=598, Section 5, T7N-R9E) 
 

and   

L21-24-600-040-10  City of Lapeer, Jenning’s Addition, Lot 14 Block 1  
(l=9 p=598, Section 5, T7N-R9E) 

 
4. That the Boundary Transfer Request preserves all easement and master utility  plans. 
 
5. That any future site development complies with all setbacks and other applicable 

requirements established by the City of Lapeer Zoning Ordinance. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this Resolution be filed with the Lapeer 
County Register of Deeds. 
  



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution be sent to the City Assessor and to 
Derrick Zock. 
 
AYES:   
NAYES: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
MOTION CARRIED. RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by 
the Lapeer City Commission, County of Lapeer, Michigan at a regular meeting held on May 20, 2024, 
in compliance with Act No. 267 of the Michigan Public Act of 1976. 
 
       
 

 
 

 
The following document was signed 
before me by Romona Sanchez City 
Clerk of the City of Lapeer on 
_________________, 2024  

    
        

Romona Sanchez, CMC  
City Clerk, City of Lapeer 

 

 
 

 

, Notary Public,  
State of Michigan, Lapeer County 
 My Commission Expires:__________ 
Acting in the County of Lapeer 
 
 
 

Return to:  
City Clerk, City of Lapeer 
576 Liberty Park 
Lapeer, MI 48446 
 



























ITEM C-13 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Romona Sanchez 
Date: May 10, 2024 
RE: Local Governing Body Resolution for Charitable Gaming Licenses 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt the Local Governing Body Resolution for Charitable Gaming Licenses for Love INC. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
Love, INC. is applying for a charitable gaming license through the State of Michigan. This license 
would allow the organization to host fund-raising events. Glenda Brady is asking for City Commission 
approval of the above-mentioned resolution.  

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
None. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 10, 2024 
Consent:  

Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing: 

S:\City Logo\City Logo 2021\Templates\Interoffice Memo\Interoffice Memo - AGENDA.docx 



From: Glenda Brady
To: Romona Sanchez
Subject: Love INC - Raffle license
Date: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 8:32:05 AM

IRONSCALES couldn't recognize this email as this is the first time you received an email from
this sender glenda.loveinc @ gmail.com

Hi Romona

The raffle license will be used for our Sporting Clay Tournament August 24, 2024.  We might
raffle a Sporting clay style gun or a gun cabinet - something worth $1000 - $2000 -  my board
of directors has not decided yet.   

Can you email me a copy of the signed paperwork once it's approved?  Then I can forward it
to the state gaming commission.  

In case you need to mail it to me: 
Love INC
1680-B North Lapeer Rd.
Lapeer, MI 48446

-- 
Thank you,
Glenda Brady
Executive Director

810-245-2414

mailto:glenda.loveinc@gmail.com
mailto:rsanchez@ci.lapeer.mi.us


MGCB-MP-5036 (06-19)

State of Michigan
Michigan Gaming Control Board 
Millionaire Party Licensing
3062 W. Grand Blvd, Suite L-700
Detroit, MI  48202-6062
Phone: (313) 456-4940
Fax: (313) 456-3405
Email: Millionaireparty@michigan.gov 
www.michigan.gov/mgcb

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY RESOLUTION FOR CHARITABLE GAMING LICENSES
(Required by MCL.432.103(k)(ii))

At a _______________________________ meeting of the ________________________________
REGULAR OR SPECIAL TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VILLAGE COUNCIL/BOARD

called to order by ___________________________________ on ______________________
DATE

at a.m./p.m. the following resolution was offered:
TIME

Moved by and supported by

that the request from of ,
NAME OF ORGANIZATION CITY

county of , asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit
COUNTY

organization operating in the community, for the purpose of obtaining charitable gaming licenses, be .

considered for .
APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL

APPROVAL: Yeas: _______________ DISAPPROVAL: Yeas: _______________

Nays: _______________ Nays: _______________

Absent: ______________ Absent: ______________

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution offered and adopted .

by the ____________________________________________ at a ______________________
TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VILLAGE COUNCIL/BOARD REGULAR OR SPECIAL

meeting held on .
DATE

SIGNED: _____________________________________________________
TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VILLAGE CLERK

_____________________________________________________
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

_____________________________________________________
ADDRESS

Organization Information: __
ORGANIZATION’S MAILING ADDRESS, STREET, CITY, ZIP

( )
________________________________________ ____________________
ORGANIZATION’S PRINCIPAL OFFICER NAME AND TITLE PHONE NUMBER

Authority: Act 382 of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended Page 1 of 1

Regular  City of Lapeer

Mayor Marquardt May 20, 2024

6:30

Love INC Lapeer

Lapeer

Approval

City of Lapeer Regular

May 20, 2024

Romona Sanchez, City Clerk

City of Lapeer, 576 Liberty Park, MI 48446



ITEM D-1   

 

To: Mayor and City Commission 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date:  
RE: Bill Listing – May 20, 2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the bill listing as presented. 

 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
I, Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services, have reviewed the bills for May 1, 2024, through 
May 14, 2024, in the total amount of $407,908.18 and find them to be proper charges. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date:  May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent: 
Administrative:  X Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 
S:\City Logo\City Logo 2022\Templates\Interoffice Memo\Interoffice Memo - AGENDA.docx 



                                                     CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF LAPEER                                                          
                                              CHECK DATE FROM 05/01/2024 - 05/14/2024                                              

Check Date Check Vendor Name Amount
05/09/2024 2105(A) GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY 140,761.28
05/09/2024 597795 MOTOROLA 82,360.76
05/09/2024 2124(E) BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MI 66,952.56
05/09/2024 2119(A) SPICER GROUP 13,235.50
05/09/2024 2125(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY 12,186.15
05/09/2024 597793 MLR ENGINEERING 8,300.00
05/09/2024 597791 METRO ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS 6,500.00
05/09/2024 597776 ETNA SUPPLY 6,185.00
05/09/2024 597787 LAKEVIEW CONSTRUCTION 5,750.00
05/09/2024 2099(A) ABM COMMERCIAL CLEANING, LLC 5,660.00
05/09/2024 597780 GREAT LAKES DIRECTIONAL BORING & TR 5,500.00
05/09/2024 597802 T. P. ISRAEL CO INC 4,985.00
05/09/2024 597769 BESSETTE'S BUMPING & PAINTING 4,908.05
05/09/2024 597775 DELYNN'S DESIGNS, INC 3,953.10
05/09/2024 2101(A) CORRIGAN OIL II, INC. 3,575.97
05/09/2024 2109(A) L.E.O.R.T.C 3,155.90
05/09/2024 2100(A) CARAHSOFT TECHNOLOGY CORP 3,087.00
05/09/2024 2106(A) IDF CLEANUP, INC. 3,000.00
05/09/2024 2110(A) MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT, LLC 2,428.17
05/09/2024 2122(A) VECTOR TECH GROUP 2,345.00
05/09/2024 2111(A) MAUK, JODI 1,807.70
05/09/2024 2118(A) SMITH, SHANNON 1,807.70
05/09/2024 597792 MGS ELECTRIC INC. 1,452.00
05/09/2024 2127(E) METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 1,324.98
05/09/2024 2113(A) MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC 1,145.68
05/09/2024 2121(A) TAYLOR, SARAH 1,000.00
05/09/2024 597805 VIEW NEWSPAPERS 934.20
05/09/2024 597804 VERIZON WIRELESS 933.42
05/09/2024 2108(A) KIRBY BUILT PRODUCTS, INC. 922.90
05/09/2024 2102(A) CRUISERS, INC 817.25
05/09/2024 2103(A) EUROFINS ENVIRONMENT TESTING 697.50
05/09/2024 2107(A) JOHNSON CONTROLS SEC. SOLUTIONS 680.18
05/09/2024 2120(A) SZOTT FORD 667.50
05/09/2024 2117(A) RIGHT TOUCH LANDSCAPING INC 550.00
05/09/2024 2115(A) PARAGON LABORATORIES, INC. 526.00
05/09/2024 2114(A) NORTH CENTRAL LABS 489.52
05/09/2024 597765 ACTION MUNICIPAL SUPPLY, LLC 483.00
05/09/2024 2123(A) WHOLESALE TREE, INC. 438.00
05/09/2024 597770 BLUE FLAME PROPANE INC 361.76
05/09/2024 597799 STATE OF MICHIGAN 335.00
05/09/2024 597797 PRO ENERGY CONSULTANTS OF ANN ARBOR 325.00
05/09/2024 597777 FENTON MEMORIALS & VAULTS, INC. 315.00
05/09/2024 2116(A) PIONEER MANUFACTURING CO. INC 305.95



05/09/2024 597800 STATE OF MICHIGAN 288.00
05/09/2024 597779 GOFF, JASON & ANGELA 250.00
05/09/2024 597782 HELTON CONCRETE 250.00
05/09/2024 597789 LILLEY, BRUCE & CYNTHIA 250.00
05/09/2024 597794 MOORS MASONRY 250.00
05/09/2024 597796 PIPE DOCTOR 247, LLC 250.00
05/09/2024 597783 HENSON, JULIE 236.00
05/09/2024 597786 JAY'S SEPTIC 230.00
05/09/2024 597790 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 224.88
05/09/2024 2112(A) MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL SERVICES 214.40
05/09/2024 597788 LAPEER CO REGISTER OF DEEDS 210.00
05/09/2024 597772 CANNELL, RONALD 200.33
05/09/2024 597771 BUD'S HEATING & COOLING 200.00
05/09/2024 597773 CAPITOL SUPPLY &  SERVICE, INC 200.00
05/09/2024 597785 HOLLAND HEATING & COOLING, INC 200.00
05/09/2024 597801 STATLAB, LLC 150.00
05/09/2024 597781 GROUP RESOURCES 144.00
05/09/2024 597806 WILLIAMS, DAWN 110.00
05/09/2024 597803 TRW LANDSCAPES LLC 103.00
05/09/2024 2126(E) INVOICE CLOUD 100.00
05/09/2024 597764 911 MECHANICAL ADVANCED AIR CARE 100.00
05/09/2024 597766 ADVANCE CONTRACTING AND ELECTRIC 100.00
05/09/2024 597767 ASHLEY HARTWICK 100.00
05/09/2024 597768 BERGERON BACKFLOW SERVICES 100.00
05/09/2024 597778 FOUNDATION SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN 100.00
05/09/2024 597798 SIGNS BY CRANNIE, INC 100.00
05/09/2024 2104(A) FLINT WELDING SUPPLY CO 81.25
05/09/2024 597774 CAPITOL SUPPLY & SERVICE, INC 9.00
05/09/2024 597784 HIBBLER, ERIC 7.64
05/12/2024 2(S) WELLER TRUCK PARTS, LLC. 0.00

TOTAL $407,908.18



ITEM G-1 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Budget Amendment for FY2023/24 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend City Commission approve the attached budget amendment as presented.  

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
Attached is a budget amendment for FY23/24.  The FY24/25 budget submitted to the City 
Commission included these projections.  It is recommended that the City Commission approve 
the attached budget amendment as presented.  

If you have any questions or require further information, please advise. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  

 Administrative: X Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 



2023/2024
AMOUNT OF

ACCOUNT # ACCOUNT NAME ADJUST. (+/-)
101-000-438.000 INCOME TAX 15,992              
101-301-505.000 JUSTICE TRAINING FUNDS 5,000                
101-336-675.010 DONATIONS 2,753                

Increase in General Fund Revenue 23,745              

101-265-701.000 SALARY & WAGES-FULL TIME 6,500                
101-265-715.000 SOCIAL SECURITY 500                   
101-265-716.000 HEALTH INSURANCE 4,000                
101-265-718.000 RETIREMENT SYSTEM 3,200                
101-265-930.000 BUILDING & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 5,000                
101-265-941.000 EQUIPMENT RENTAL-CITY 2,000                
101-265-969.100 PROPERTY INSURANCE 700                   
101-266-826.000 CITY ATTORNEY FEE (53,900)             
101-301-830.400 JUSTICE TRAINING CONF AND WORKSHOPS 5,000                
101-336-741.000 UNIFORMS 870                   
101-336-782.000 MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES 1,127                
101-441-926.000 STREET LIGHT UTILITY EXPENSE 12,000              
101-441-941.000 EQUIPMENT RENTAL-CITY 20,000              
101-966-995.403 TRANS TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 16,748              

Increase in General Fund Expenditures 23,745              
Net Change to General Fund -                    

249-371-491.200 ELECTRICAL PERMITS 18,000              
249-371-491.300 MECHANICAL PERMITS 32,500              
249-000-665.000 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 8,000                

Increase in Building Fund Revenue 58,500              

249-371-815.000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICE 71,000              
249-371-826.000 LEGAL FEES (12,500)             

Increase in Building Fund Expenditures 58,500              
Net Change to Building Fund -                    

403-964-699.101 TRANS FROM GENERAL FUND 16,748              
Increase in Capital Fund Revenue 16,748              

403-336-976.000 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 16,748              
Increase in Capital Fund Expenditures 16,748              

Net Change to Capital Fund -                    

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT
REQUEST FORM



2023/2024
AMOUNT OF

ACCOUNT # ACCOUNT NAME ADJUST. (+/-)

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT
REQUEST FORM

602-000-665.000 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 9,600                
Increase in Technology Fund Revenue 9,600                

602-228-934.000 EQUIPMENT MAINT-COMPUTER 9,600                
Increase in Technology Fund Expenditures 9,600                

Net Change to Technology Fund -                    

Kelly Hanna

TO:  FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Date

Department Head Signature

City Manager's Signature

The  above indicated  Budget Adjustments  were approved  by the  City 
Commission at their Commission meeting.  Please make the 
appropriate entries to reflect the approved amount.



ITEM G-2 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\Memo - Graham - Commit to Purch Cat Loader - 5-14-2024.docx 

To:    Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeff Graham Public Works Director 
Date:  May 14, 2024 
RE: City Commitment to Purchase Cat Loader 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
I recommend that the commission approve the commitment to purchase Cat loader. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
The City Commission has approved the CIP and the Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, which 
includes the replacement of the Komatsu loader in the amount of $255,000.  Upon approval, 
the new loader will be purchased at a lower price $240,000.  This is only a commitment to 
purchase after July 1, 2024. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
The 2016 Komatsu loader has needed many repairs.  Replacing the 2016 Komatsu with the 
Cat loader will allow the DPW to utilize existing attachments which are already owned by the 
City.  Additionally, the Komatsu loader will be sold or traded in with an anticipated value to be 
approximately $80,000 to $85,000. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  

Administrative: X Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing:  







ITEM G-3 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\Agenda Memo - Rowden Park Pathway addtional scope items for 
Spark Grant.docx 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Rodney Church, Director of Parks, Recreation & Cemetery 
Date: May 13, 2024 
RE: Approve additional scope items for Rowden Park Project – Spark Grant 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To approve adding additional scope items to the Rowden Park Linear Pathway Project funded by the 
Spark Grant not to exceed the $389,685.20 balance remaining on the grant.  

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
At the April 15, 2024, Commission meeting the City Commission approved hiring Diamond Excavating 
for the Rowden Park Pathway project. Even after additional change orders in the amount of $50,000, 
there remains a significant amount of funding available for the project.  Approval from the DNR was 
requested and granted to add additional scope items. Below is what we are proposing to add to the 
project at no cost to the City: 

1. Parking Lot Improvements
a. Pulverize and repave existing asphalt driveway and parking lot.
b. Re-paint parking lot lines.
c. Add additional ADA parking spaces.

2. Trail extension
a. Asphalt pathway leading from the entrance of the park at M-24 running adjacent to the

existing driveway connecting to the pathway near the NW corner of the parking lot.

Below is the Spark Grant Financial Summary with the added scope items: 

Spark Grant Financial Summary 
Spark Grant Award $767,600.00 
Rowden Park Trail Rehab Engineering $77,700.00 
Diamond Excavating Contract $250,214.80 
Change Orders to original project $50,000.00 
Additional Scope Items including engineering (see above) $325,589.72 
Spark Grant Funding Remaining $64,095.48 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
None. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  

Administrative: X Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing:  





ITEM G-4 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\G-CC Agenda Memo.docx 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeff Graham, Director of Public Works 
Date: May 14, 2024 
RE: Approval of Contract with Precision Concrete Cutting FY 23/24 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Commission approve the $35,000 contract with Precision 
Concrete Cutting. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
The Department of Public Works is requesting permission to approve the contract with 
Precision Concrete Cutting for $35,000. See attached sheet CIP project #19100 commission 
approved $50,000 until FY 28/29 to be spent on sidewalk repair and/or replacement.  This is 
money that we have budget for FY 23/24 and we would get this done before July 1, 2024. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
None. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  

Administrative: X Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing:  













ITEM G-5 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\G-8 Parking lot #5 memo.docx 

To: City Commission 
From: Mike Womack-City Manager 
Date: May 15th, 2024 
RE: Parking Lot #5 Repave, drainage improvements and green space creation 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the proposal from T.G. Priehs Asphalt as presented, for a price of $271,850.00 (which 
includes the 2-inch overlay not the 1.5-inch overlay). 

Staff will also likely need engineering assistance to complete EGLE requirements, 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
City staff met with Priehs Asphalt on site to discuss the possible repaving of the parking lot 
along with Commission requested drainage improvements as suggested by the City’s engineer. 
DPW and Parks staff also discussed the removal of asphalt and parking area south of the 
existing light poles which would improve water runoff characteristics and would make the area 
more attractive and “park-like.”  The downside being that we would lose some parking spaces 
and also that the site could be less usable by the heavier Lapeer Day’s equipment. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Parking lot #5 is in terrible condition and otherwise heavily used by the City’s businesses, their 
employees, and various events, including the food truck rally and Lapeer Days.  Lapeer days 
did previously occur on the grass in Anrook Park but has been on the parking lot asphalt for a 
number of years.  The City did place an asphalt overlay in this parking lot for the use of the 
artificial ice skating surface and while the skating surface has since moved to the Recreation 
Center, the asphalt overlay remains in very good condition. 

The original vision for this site included a pavilion for farmers market use and the installation of 
significant electrical improvements to assist various uses of the area for events, however 
EGLE, which has approval oversight of this area due to the floodplain, was determined to be 
unlikely to cooperate with the City on those improvements and the improvements were likely 
to be very expensive as well. 

Rowe engineering put together two quotes for improvement of this site, the first quote included 
all of the wished for electrical improvements for a price of $1,002,611 and a second quote for 
$799,868 which did not include the electrical improvements.  The City’s staff likewise came up 
with two quotes for the improvement of this site the first for $185,000 which was a simple 1.5 
inch asphalt overlay and the second for $244,850 or $271,850 which included improved site 
drainage work, the removal of significant asphalt from the site, assistance with the creation of 
additional green space on the south side of the area (with the Parks Department completing 
the plantings and either a 1.5 inch or a 2 inch asphalt overlay. 

While the ROWE proposal likely includes better plans for site drainage, staff do not believe that 
the extra cost is warranted in comparison to the quote obtained by staff directly from Priehs. 
The minimum price difference of $528,018 between the two quotes would be enough to 



City of Lapeer 
Page 2 
 

 

complete the same work over again an two additional times (1.94 times).  That plus the quality 
of the previously completed overlay for the ice rink shows that an asphalt overlay can maintain 
integrity for a number of years at this location. 
 
Priehs is also the expected contractor on the City’s cemetery road contract which is expected 
to be completed in August or September of this year, we may benefit from their completing 
both projects at the same time.  Staff did inform Priehs that this project cannot be completed 
prior to Lapeer Days 2024.  While the citizens would enjoy the improved asphalt for the festival, 
I did not want to spring such a drastic parking lot change on the Chamber of commerce with 
only a short time to prepare, they are aware of the expected change for 2025. 
 
The City Commission did approve $300,000 in the 24-25 budget for this project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
 Consent:  
Administrative: X Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing:  
 





 
                                                                           

8 Mountain Drive   Imlay City, MI 48444 
Phone: (810) 721-2600 

Fax: (810) 721-2626 
              www.priehspaving.com  

 

 

Proposal                    February 29, 2024 

City of Lapeer 
576 Liberty Street 
Lapeer, Michigan 48446 
 
T.G. Priehs Paving Co. respectively submits the following proposal for your review.  Our 
proposal includes the following items only: 
 
Re:  Downtown Parking Lot 
 
Parking Lot Reduction Area 

1. Excavate and remove existing asphalt.  Haul spoils off site. 
2. Excavate and remove 8 inches of parking lot subbase. 
3. Furnish and install approx. 360 linear ft. of 8-inch perforated tile with sock and 3- 

24-inch precast concrete storm structures with beehive covers.  Section of pipe 
underneath asphalt path will be solid 8-inch schedule 40.  

4. Furnish and install a dry riverbed over buried tile consisting of fabric and 3–5-
inch field stone. 

5. Furnish and install approx. 8 inches of suitable fill and 4 inches of topsoil in the 
remaining lawn area. 

 
10’ Wide Asphalt Path  

1. Furnish and install 6 inches of MDOT 21AA crushed limestone for path subbase. 
2. Furnish and install 3 inches of MDOT 5EL asphalt in two layers. 

 
Parking Lot 

1. Edge cold mill as needed along concrete sidewalks, curb and approaches to allow 
proper drainage and smooth transitions.  Haul spoils off site. 

2. Sweep and clean asphalt. 
3. Apply SS1H bond coat. 
4. Furnish and install approx. 50 tons of MDOT 13A asphalt for wedging low spots. 
5. Furnish and install 1.5 inches of MDOT 5EL asphalt to entire parking lot. 
6. Stripe parking stalls to owner’s specifications. 
7. Clean up all job-related debris. 

 
TOTAL PROJECT COST ……………………………………………………. $ 244,850.00 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 Options: 

1. 2-inch parking lot resurface – Additional $27,000.00 
 

Notes: 
1. Does not include any applicable permits or testing. 
2. Work to be completed in conjunction and oversite of the City of Lapeer. 
3. Does not include final restoration (seeding, shrubs, trees) in lawn area. 

 
 
 

This proposal is to become an integral part of any and all future contracts involving 
this project. T.G. Priehs Paving Co. may withdraw or amend this proposal if not accepted 
within thirty (30) days.  

Thank you for the opportunity to offer a proposal on this project. If you have any 
questions, please call 810-721-2600. 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Travis Priehs, Owner 



ITEM H-1 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\Freshwater Gardens CC Agenda Memo.docx 

To: City Commission 
From: Mike Womack-City Manager 
Date: May 15th, 2024 
RE: Freshwater Gardens possible land swap 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the City Manager to continue negotiations with Freshwater Gardens to develop a 
proposed land swap to assist Freshwater Gardens in developing their proposed marihuana 
grower operation. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 

Freshwater Gardens has submitted a letter to the City asking to move forward together on a 
possible deal where the City and Freshwater Gardens would complete a land swap between 
their property on Genesee and a City property located in the John Conley business park.  The 
details of the land swap are still forthcoming but based upon the submitted letter and ongoing 
discussions between the parties, I believe that we can come to a fair and equitable resolution. 

The land swap deal would still need to be approved of by the City Commission at a later date. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Freshwater Gardens previously received an approval to build their marihuana grower operation 
on their property located on Genesee St., near to Krave Restaurant.  Due to their difficulty in 
obtaining utility easements, their site plan expired and they were required to obtain an updated 
site plan approval, their resubmitted site plan was similar to the previously approved site plan.  
The Planning Commission voted against approval of the site plan/special land use necessary 
for this business to open at their property and Fresh Water gardens subsequently submitted a 
suit against the City in court for what they believe are violations of law in the denial of their site 
plan/special land use. 

Concurrently but separately, I have been working on this potential land swap idea which would 
accomplish several goals of the City, the primary of which is moving a potentially smelly 
business away from the residential property uses located in the downtown area near to the 
Krave restaurant area.  The City also wants to see job providing and tax paying legal 
businesses open in the City. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 
Consent:  

Administrative: X Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk 
Public Hearing:  





ITEM J-1
To: Mayor and City Commission 
Date: May 13, 2024 
RE: Boards & Commissions Appointments  

MAYORAL APPOINTMENT 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION MEMBER NAME 

CURRENT 
TERM 

EXPIRES 
TERM 

LENGTH 
NEW TERM 

EXPIRATION 
COMMENTS 
Re:  STATUS 

County Center Board Vacancy Jan 1, 2025 1 Year Awaiting 
Recommendation

EDC/TIFA/Brownfield Vacancy 
Vacancy 

Mar 1, 2030 
Mar 1, 2030 

6 Year 
6 Year 

Awaiting 
Recommendation 

Local Officers 
Compensation 
Commission 

Vacancy 
Vacancy 

Oct 1, 2026 
Oct 1, 2027 

5 Year 
5 Year 

Awaiting 
Recommendation 

COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION MEMBER NAME EXPIRATION TERM 

LENGTH 
NEW TERM 

EXPIRATION 
COMMENTS 
Re: STATUS 

Income Tax Board 
of Review Vacancy Dec 1, 2024 3 Year Awaiting 

Recommendation 
Prison Liaison 

Committee Vacancy Apr 1, 2025 3 Year Awaiting 
Recommendation 

Zoning Board of 
Appeals Vacancy – Alternate Apr 1, 2027 3 Year Awaiting 

Recommendation 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 13, 2024 
Consent: 

Administrative: X Reviewed By:  D. Jansen, Deputy City Clerk
Public Hearing: 



ITEM K-1  

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\05-20-24 Regular\K- Monthly Reports Cover.docx 

To: Mayor and City Commission 
Date: May 20, 2024 
RE: MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORTS 
CITY DEPARTMENTS: 
1. BUILDING DEPARTMENT

2. FINANCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
A. ASSESSING DIVISION
B. INCOME TAX DIVISION
C. ACCOUNTING/DATA PROCESSING DIVISION

3. FIRE AND RESCUE DEPARTMENT

4. HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
A. LAPEER HOUSING COMMISSION (LHC)
B. LAPEER NEIGHBORHOOD’S INC. (LNI)
C. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

5. PLANNING DEPARTMENT
A. DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

6. POLICE DEPARTMENT
A. POLICE
B. ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT
C. PARKING DIVISION

7. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
A. SEWER UTILITY DIVISION
B. STREET DIVISION
C. WATER DIVISION
D. WASTEWATER DIVISION

8. MARIJUANA MONTHLY REPORT

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: May 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: May 15, 2024 

Reviewed By: D. Jansen, Deputy Clerk



ITEM K-1-1











Item K-1-2-A  

 

To: Interim City Manager 
C.C. City Board of Commissioners 
From: Denise Marinelli, Assessor 
Date: May 10, 2024 
RE: Monthly Departmental Report 

ASSESSING DEPARTMENT CONCENTRATION: 
 

• Property Transfers will be updated when the database is rolled over. Current Deed 
breakdown: 
 

 Deeds May 
Vacant 

land 
New 

Construction 

 
Prior 

Month 
Transfers 11   7 
Non-Transfers 17     13 
Forcl/Redmptn 1     0 
Total  29     20 
     

 

• The Department is organizing, recording, and processing the 2024 assessment roll  and 

Board of Review’s supporting documentation, and is currently preparing for the 2025 

assessments by processing transfers and permits. We are currently preparing the fieldwork 

for new construction and annual review of existing properties. 

• The department continues to investigate, correct, and update property description 

discrepancies, omissions, errors, and changes. We assist departments, property owners, 

realtors and appraisers with questions and concerns as well as processing address and lot 

split requests. 

• As always, please contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

 



Item # K-1-2-B  

 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: May 15, 2024 
RE: Income Tax Monthly Report for April 2024 

CITY OF LAPEER 
Monthly Financial Statement 

Income Tax Department 
April 2024 

       

       

 Net Net Original Current Actual Excess 
Fiscal Monthly Total Budget Budget Total (Deficit) 
Year Income Yr-to-date for year for year for year Revenue 

       
2013/14 $422,062 $2,356,044 $2,590,000 $2,590,000 $2,827,204 $237,204 

       
2014/15 $438,112 $2,534,429 $2,590,000 $2,590,000 $2,953,553 $363,553 

       
2015/16 $454,968 $2,652,257 $2,785,000 $2,785,000 $3,069,571 $284,571 

       
2016/17 $366,857 $2,724,376 $3,065,000 $3,065,000 $3,212,298 $147,298 

       
2017/18 $564,977 $2,974,570 $3,165,000 $3,165,000 $3,349,223 $184,223 

       
2018/19 $714,720 $3,129,243 $3,175,000 $3,175,000 $3,521,027 $346,027 

       
2019/20 $450,937 $2,795,130 $3,265,000 $3,265,000 $3,228,023 -$36,977 

       
2020/21 $600,156 $3,172,509 $3,495,000 $3,495,000 $3,783,095 $288,095 

       
2021/22 $1,054,699 $3,906,207 $3,476,000 $3,476,000 $4,527,734 $1,051,734 

       
2022/23 $1,169,294 $4,202,513 $4,090,000 $4,140,076 $4,941,930 $801,854 

       
2023/24 $1,068,133 $4,287,258 $4,833,000 $4,833,000   
       

 
Original Budget and Current Year Budget columns for FYE 2013- 2023 adjusted to include 
budgeted p&I & prosecution 

 



Item # K-1-2-C 

 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: May 15, 2024 
RE: Finance Department Report for April 2024 
 

1)  147 – accounts payable checks were issued. 
 
2)  305 - payroll payments were issued. 
 
3)     1,213 - income tax refund checks were issued. 
 
4) Records were reviewed with those needing information on burial location.   There was 

one (1) grave purchased; one (1) full burial (with winter charge); two (2) burials of 
cremains; and four foundations purchased (for $850.00). 

 
 5) Fifty-One (51) delinquent 2023 personal property tax bills were receipted for $9,331.95; 

thirty-five (35) delinquent 2022 personal property tax bills were receipted for $58,160.41; 
nineteen (19 delinquent 2021 personal property tax bills were receipted for $3,675.07; 
ten (10) delinquent 2019 personal property tax bills were receipted for $2,139.34; and 
seven (7) delinquent 2018 personal property tax bills were receipted for $835.54 for a 
grand total of $74,142.31.     

 
6) There were 77 additions and 57 cancellations received regarding the voter registration 

records. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ITEM K-1-3 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager  
From: Mike Vogt, Fire Chief 
Date: May 7, 2024 
RE: April 2024 

MONTH SUMMARIZED:  

Training: The department conducted a total of eight training sessions (4 day/4 night).  A total of 269.0 man-
hours were spent in training during the month.   

Community Risk Reduction:  The department participated in four events during the month.  Three of these 
events occurred in the City of Lapeer.  Two of the events were public education events that included 475 
children.   

Fire & Life Safety:  Two annual inspections, 11 reinspection, four other types of inspections, and eight site 
visits were completed in the city, with five violations being identified.  There were six businesses inspected 
that were without any fire code violations.  Two CO2 plans, one generator plan, one paint booth plan, one 
sprinkler plan and three remodel plans were reviewed for the Building Department for the month of April. 

Responses:  The department responded to a total of 32 incidents during the month, requiring a total of 253.5 
man-hours.  This is four more responses than we had for the same period in 2023. 50% of these responses 
occurred Monday-Friday between the hours of 6:00 am and 6:00 pm. The estimated dollar loss for the month 
was $19,000, bringing the estimated annual dollar loss for the year to $699,000.  The loss for the month 
resulted from a vehicle fire in the City of Lapeer and a residential building fire in Oregon Township. 

The number of responses for the month by municipality was: City of Lapeer-12, Lapeer Twp-4, Mayfield Twp-
10, Oregon Twp-4, Automatic/Mutual Aid-2.   

The average emergency response time (in minutes) to each municipality was: City of Lapeer-0.0, Lapeer 
Twp-0.0, Mayfield Twp-0.0, Oregon Twp-8.0.   

The calendar year annual percentage of responses by municipality is: City of Lapeer-50.00%, Lapeer Twp-
14.02%, Mayfield Twp-21.34%, Oregon Twp-7.32%, Assists-7.32%.   

The number of burn permits issued for the month by municipality was: Lapeer Twp-214, Mayfield Twp-290, 
Oregon Twp-134.   

The breakdown of responses by type is as follows:   

Fire Alarm-Malicious 0 Fire Alarm-Unintentional                        4          
Fire Alarm-Malfunction 1 Fire Alarm-Residential 1      
Building Fire-Residential 1 Building Fire-Commercial 0      
Building Fire-Other 0 Vehicle Fire 2 
Grass/Brush Fire 0 Rescue 1          
Good Intent 2  Electrical Related                                   6          
Smoke Investigation 1 Gasoline/Diesel Spill/Leak 0        
Natural Gas/Propane Leak 1 Carbon Monoxide (alarm & actual)   2                
Other Type Fires 0 Other Type Response 8          
Assist to Other Agencies 2            Washdown 0   

 

 



Page 2 
 
Additional Department Information:   

The department received a grant from The Hundred Club of Genesee, Shiawassee, and Lapeer Counties:  
This grant is for helmets and flashlights.  It is our goal to be able to enhance the safety of our members by 
ensuring they have the proper equipment. 

 

City of Lapeer Activities Calendar 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                           ITEM K-1-4-a  
Dept:    Housing Improvement Department 
Submitted To: Mr. Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:    Denise Soldenski, Director of Housing and Neighborhood Development 
Date:    May 16th, 2024  
RE:    April 10th, 2024 – May 7th, 2024 

copy:    Lapeer Housing Commission/Lapeer Riverview Towers, LLC 

 
LAPEER HOUSING COMMISSION (LHC)/LAPEER RIVERVIEW TOWERS, LLC (LRT) 
 
A. RIVERVIEW TOWERS: HUD PROJECT BASED VOUCHER (PBV) 

1. As of May 6, Riverview Towers has two vacant units which are both expected to be filled 
in the month of June.  

2. The Riverview waitlist contains a sufficient supply of applicants to fill vacant units. 
 
B. HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM (HCV) 

1. As of May 6, 96 vouchers are under contract. 
2. No new vouchers have been issued since the last report. 
3. The waitlist has been recently purged and updated to reflect most current contact 

information and intentions to remain on waitlist.   
4. Pulling applicants from the waitlist will continue as funding allows to fill vacant vouchers.   

 
C. ADMINISTRATION 

1. Attachment #1 Lapeer Housing Commission/Lapeer Riverview Towers, LLC financials.  
2. Ms. Soldenski has been looking for alternatives to using analog telephone lines for our 

emergency systems. The analog lines are used so that in the event of a power outage, 
we still have communication; however, these lines are unreliable, outdated and very 
expensive. Riverview has replaced the fire panel line with a cellular solution at a cost 
savings. The remaining lines are for the elevator emergency phones (2), the intercom, 
the medical pendant system, and the fax line. Granite is our current analog phone line 
provider (via AT&T infrastructure) and our monthly bill has reached approx. $400/month 
or $4800 annually. Granite has proposed a solution via its EPIX product. This solution 
uses cellular communication with internet backup and a 24 battery backup. The system 
could potentially also be plugged into an outlet operated by the generator when power 
outages occur. This transition would cost approx. $50/line for $250 monthly total ($3000 
annually), not subject to other fees, and could be locked in for a three year term. This 
would save Riverview $1800 annually and also provide for a much more reliable 
emergency communication system. Ms. Soldenski would like approval from the 
board to transition to the Granite EPIK system. If approved, Granite would do a site 
survey to ensure a proper connection could be achieved and then a final installation 
visit. Ms. Soldenski has been told that the phone numbers can all remain the same, and 
that the cost would just convert to this system. An overlap in services should occur for 
approximately a month where both monthly bills would be paid just to have time to verify 
proper operation of the new system before abandoning the analog lines.   

3. HUD released the Final Rule of the Housing Opportunity Through Modernization Act 
(HOTMA) of 2016, Sections 102, 103 and 104 on February 14th, 2023.  This rule 
provides for income and asset changes that will affect the HCV and PBV programs must 



City of Lapeer 
Page 2 
 

be in effect by January 1st, 2025. HUD released PIH Notice 2023-27 which provides 
implementation guidance. On April 24th, 2024 HUD released PIH Notice 2024-12 that 
covers “Housing Information Portal (HIP) Implementation”. LHC must be on-boarded to 
the new HUD Housing Information Portal (HIP) prior to implementing HOTMA. As long 
as the HIP conversion takes place, LHC compliance date will be on or before Jan. 1st, 
2025. Prior to full implementation, staff training and tenant/landlord notifications must 
take place. LHC HCV Admin Plan has been modified for HOTMA and is going through 
final review prior to approval and use.  

4. HUD is also changing the process/standard for Housing Quality Standard Inspections 
(HQS) to National Standards for the Physical Inspection of Real Estate (NSPIRE). The 
new standard is an inspection model that is more common across the various HUD 
programs. PHAs must convert on or before October 1st, 2024. Systems updates and 
staff training needs to take place prior to full implementation which includes use of an 
NSPIRE application via dedicated cell phone for electronic inspections. HUD has issued 
PIH Notice 2023-28 for implementation guidance and administrative procedures for 
HCV/PBV. Chapter 8 of the LHC HCV Admin Plan has been updated based on Nan 
McKay’s model and will be ready for implementation after the HUD application is 
released and staff training is complete. A dedicated cell phone has been acquired for 
LHC inspections.  

5. HUD is moving forward with a more clear proposed rule for Affirmatively Furthering Fair 
Housing. HUD’s intent is to “affirmatively further fair housing by creating strong, 
sustainable, inclusive communities and quality affordable housing for all.” More 
information to come as this proposed rule approaches final rule. 

6. HUD has been releasing updated chapters in the “Housing Choice Voucher Program 
Guidebook”.  As the chapters are released, Ms. Soldenski reviews, updates and 
requests approval for our HCV Administrative Plan, if necessary. There are no updates 
to the Guidebook this month that affect policy.  

 



                   ITEM K-1-4-b 
To:    Housing Improvement Department 
Submitted To: Mr. Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:    Denise Soldenski, Director of Housing and Neighborhood Development 
Date:    May16th, 2024  
RE:    April 10th, 2024 – May 7th, 2024 
copy:    Lapeer Neighborhoods Inc. 

 
A. HOUSING IMPROVEMENT DEPARTMENT (HID) - See attachment #2 for project 

photos. 
 

1. MSHDA NEP – MSHDA Round 9 Grant Program:  This grant is now open and 
accepting applications.   
a. Project 1 - Annrook Park: - Awaiting EGLE permit for project to begin. 
b. Project 2 – Adams St. – Roof Replacement – Contracts have been signed and 

project has started. 
c. Project 3 – W. Genesee St. – Driveway – Work Specifications have been completed 

and will be sent out for bid. 
 

2. MSHDA MI-HOPE Grant:  Ms. Lincoln is working on gathering bids and additional 
documents to start the process for each applicant.     
a. Project 1 – S. Elm St. – Roof Replacement – Contracts have been signed and 

project started. 
b. Project 2 - Lincoln St. - Roof, Water Heater, Electrical – Roof Replacement – 

Contracts have been signed and project started. 
c. Project 3 – Dewey St. – Insulation, Water Heater, and Air Conditioner – Project 

out for bid. 
d. Project 4 – Lincoln St. – HVAC, windows, electrical – Contracts have been signed 

and project started. 
e. Project 5 – N. Monroe St. – Rental – Roof, HVAC, AC, Hot Water Heater, 

Insulation – Contracts have been signed and project started. 
f. Project 6 – Hartley St. – Furnace/Air and Water Heater – Project out for bid. 
g. Project 7 – Parkway – Roof and Insulation – Project out for bid. 
h. Project 8 – Law St. – Roof, HVAC and AC – Project out for bid. 
i. Project 9 – N. Main St. – Windows, Appliances and HVAC – Energy Audit completed 

and work specifications are in process. 
j. Project 10 – First St. – Rental – Insulation, Doors and Windows – Energy Audit 

ordered. 
k. Project 11 – Jefferson St. – Windows, Insulation, Appliances, Storm Doors/Exterior 

Doors, HVAC, Electrical – Application stage. 
l. Project 12 – E. Nepessing St.- Roof – Application stage. 
m. Project 14 – 2nd Street – Windows/Doors – Application stage. 
n. Project 15 – N. Monroe – Roof/Windows/Doors/Insulation – Application stage. 
 

3. MSHDA MI Neighborhood – The HID is collaborating with the City’s Parks Dept, DPW 
Dept. and DDA to apply for the Public Amenity portion of this grant for various projects. 



City of Lapeer 
Page 2 
 

The maximum of $75K will be requested. If the grant is approved, the funding will help 
to curtail costs currently allocated to the City 2024-2025 CIP budget.  

 
4. MSHDA Housing Choice Vouchers / Section 8 

a. Lapeer County’s voucher allocation is 342 regular Housing Choice Vouchers, 6 
Project Based Vouchers, 17 Emergency Housing Vouchers for a total in Lapeer 
County of 366.  Tuscola County allocation is 88 Housing Choice Vouchers, 5 Project 
Based Vouchers, and 3 Emergency Housing Vouchers for a total in Tuscola County 
of 96. Huron County allocation is a total of 47 Housing Choice Vouchers, and 2 
Emergency Housing Vouchers for a total of 49. Our total VASH allocation remains 
at 35, Moving Up is 3, and Balance of State is 1. MSHDA has discontinued reporting 
the allowable over-allocation of 4% maximum. The total allocation is 549.  

b. Current lease up rate is now at 99.43%, as MSHDA is waiving lease up for everything 
except the PBV while waitlist pulls are on hold pending HUD 2024 funding.  

 

B. LAPEER NEIGHBORHOODS INCORPORATED (LNI)  
1. Projects –  

a. 405 S. Elm: Vacant: Board has decided to hold on to this property for a future new 
build. Ms. Soldenski has requested a sample proforma from MSHDA for the MI 
Neighborhood grant to evaluate the financial feasibility of this grant for 405 S. Elm.  

b. Mr. Lewis has cleaned up the property so that it is ready for mowing. Rowe has been 
contracted to conduct a survey which will mark corners, provide a drawing for 
topography and location of fences and trees along the boundaries.   

 

C. FINANCE 
1. Attachment #1:  Financial report.  

  

D. ADMINISTRATION 

1. Ms. Lincoln will provide all the entries for the LNI 2024 Beautification Contest, so winners 
can be drawn and awarded. 



1 

TO: Lapeer City Planning Commission 
FROM: Planning Department 
DATE: May 1, 2024 
RE: May 2024 Development Activities Report 

This report summarizes activity on various development projects in the City over the past month 
listed by full site plans for developments reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission and 
administratively reviewed site plans for projects currently in the review and development process. 

Site Plans Reviewed by Planning Commission 

1. EL Cozumel Restaurant – 1109 S. Main Street
General Information – Construction of a new 5,692 sq. ft. restaurant with related site
improvements. 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on October 31, 2023 and was conditionally approved 
at the December 14, 2023 Planning Commission meeting.  City staff is waiting on revised plans. 

2. DTE Energy – Apollo Substation – 3135 John Conley Dr. South
General Information – Construction of a new electrical substation and control building with related
site improvements. 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on October 27, 2023 and approved with conditions at 
the January 11, 2024 Planning Commission meeting.  On February 26, 2024 the ZBA approved a 
variance to allow a gravel drive and vehicle maneuvering area.  Revised plans were received 
March 14, 2024.  Revised plans received April 12, 2024 were approved, signed and distributed on 
April 26, 2024.  The Building Dept. is currently reviewing building plans received on April 25, 2024. 

3. Security Credit Union – 1073 S. Main St.
General Information – Construction of a new 3,438 sq. ft. credit union facility with four drive through
lanes. 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on August 31, 2023.  Revised plans were submitted 
on September 27, 2023 and approved with conditions by the Planning Commission on October 12, 
2023.  Revised plans submitted on January 12, 2024 were ready for approval continent upon 
submittal and review of MDOT and LCRC permits.  Revised plans were received April 1, 2024.  
Revised plans received April 10, 2024 were approved, signed and distributed April 26, 2024.  The 
Building Dept. is waiting for submittal of building plans. 

4. Carriage Hill Circle – New Multiple-Family Residential Units
General Information – Construction of a new phased multiple-family residential development
consisting of 32 units on Carriage Hills Circle.

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on April 3, 2023 and revised plans were received on 
April 26th, June 9th July 21st.  The Planning Commission approved the site plan with conditions on 
August 10, 2023.  Revised plans were received on August 31st and October 19th 2023.  The site 
plan was approved on October 19, 2023 and final signed plans were distributed October 31, 2023. 
The applicant has stated that final building plans will be submitted in Spring 2024. 

5. Sunoco Station – 715 S. Main St.
General Information – Construction of a 2,135 sq. ft. addition to the existing Sunoco Gas Station.

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on April 3, 2023 and conditionally approved on July 
13, 2023.  Final plans were approved on September 14, 2023 and signed copies were distributed 

K-1-5-A



2 

6. Blain’s Farm and Fleet – SE Corner of Turrill Rd./S. Lapeer Rd. 
General Information – Construction of a new 84,000+ sq. ft. commercial building with auto repair 
bays on a vacant parcel at the southeast corner of Turrill Rd./S. Lapeer Rd. 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on January 6, 2023 and received conditional approval 
on February 9, 2023. The applicant re-submitted a variance request concerning exterior building 
materials on which action was postponed by the ZBA on October 23rd pending a determination by 
the Planning Commission.  On November 9, 2023 the Planning Commission determined the 
proposed metal siding was not an appropriate predominant building material and directed the 
Planning Dept to explore alternative options with the applicant.  On February 8, 2024 a site plan 
extension was approved to expire on February 9, 2025.  City staff is awaiting revised plans for 
Blain’s.  Sanitary sewer and water main plans submitted by Lapeer Crossing were received on 
March 11, 2024 and Rowe Engineering comments were sent to applicant on April 8, 2024.  City 
staff is waiting on revised utility plans. 

7. Lapeer Villas – Baldwin Rd. – Site Plan Amendment 
General Information – Construction of 147 Multiple-Family units on a vacant parcel on the north 
side of Baldwin Road. An amendment to the previous plan was approved to convert some of 
apartment building (5, 6 & 7) garage spaces into apartments and construct a club house with pool. 

Project Status – The site plan was originally submitted and approved in 2019. An amended site 
plan was received July 26, 2022 and approved on August 11, 2022.  Construction of the clubhouse 
and pool is planned for future Phases (3 and 4).  The applicant’s request for a waiver from 
landscaping buffer requirements to not construct a perimeter privacy fence was denied at the 
November 2023 Planning Commission meeting.  The City requested final as-built site plan prior to 
building plan review given the number of changes to the site with various phases and minor 
changes to exterior improvements. The applicant submitted a revised performance bond to the 
Planning Department for remaining work items, a Final C of O has been issued for Buildings #1-4 
and temporary occupancy has been issued for buildings 5, 6 and 7.  

8. Woodchips Mixed Use Building – Vacant Lot at Northeast Corner Nepessing/Mason 
General Information – Construction of a new three-story mixed-use building on the vacant lot with 
commercial and restaurant uses on the 1st floor and apartments on the 2nd and 3rd floors. 

Project Status –  Site plans were received on May 3, 2022 and May 26, 2022 and received  
contingent approval on June 9, 2022. A site plan approval extension was approved to expire on 
June 9, 2024. Planning Dept allowed the applicant to move forward with building plan submittal 
while final engineering details on site plans are finalized. Revised site plans are still pending.  

9. Beasley – Building Remodel and Parking Lot Improvements – 891 Baldwin Rd 
General Information – Construction of a rear parking lot area, with landscaping, and building 
exterior remodeling to an existing building for a professional office. 

Project Status – The site plan was received on November 18, 2021 and received contingent 
approval by the Planning Commission on January 13, 2022.  Final approved plans were distributed 
November 29, 2022. The Zoning Board of Appeals approved a variance for exterior materials on 
April 24, 2023.  Building permit was issued in June 2023 and construction is underway. 

10. Popeye’s – Drive-Through Facilities – 1040 S. Lapeer Rd. 
General Information – Construction of two new buildings (a 2,143 sq. ft. building to the north and a 
2,529 sq. ft. to the south) for drive-through facilities and shared parking. 

Project Status – The site plan for Phase 1 was received on November 1, 2021.   Special land use 
was approved December 9, 2021 and the site plan received contingent approval on January 13, 
2022.  MDOT required changes to the access drive location on M-24.  A site plan extension was 
approved until January 13, 2024.  Revised plans were received on March 24, June 14 and August 
9 and September 27, 2023.  Recorded Easement agreements have been received and EGLE 
permits have been issued.  Final site plan were approved for signatures on February 21, 2024.  
Signed plans were distributed March 13, 2024.  A demolition permit has been issued and the 

on September 29, 2023. The Building Department is awaiting submittal of building plans. 



3 

11. Lapeer M-21 Gas Station – 1280 Imlay City Rd 
General Information – Redevelopment of the current site to be a gas station located at 1280 Imlay 
City Road. Half of the building will be demolished while the remaining 3,680 sq. ft. will be used as 
the convenience store. 

Project Status – The site plan was received on May 17, 2021. The Planning Commission 
contingently approved the special land use on July 8, 2021. The site plan received contingent site 
plan approval from the Planning Commission on January 13, 2022.  Revised plans were received 
March 30, April 29, July 11, and July 14, 2022.   The final signed and approved site/engineering 
plans have been distributed. Demolition has been completed and construction is underway.  

12. Woodbridge Park II – North and West of existing Woodbridge Park Development 
General Information - Construction of 58 additional attached conventional condominium units north 
and west of the existing Woodbridge Park development.  Individual condo units will be constructed 
in two, three and four unit attached structures. 

Project Status - The site plan was approved by the Planning Commission on January 10, 2019.  
Revised site plans were received on June 7, 2019 and approved by staff on June 14, 2019.  The 
required performance bond was submitted on March 3, 2020 and final approved/signed were 
distributed March 4, 2020.  Permits were renewed in June 2023.  Construction is underway. 

Administrative Review Site Plans in Process 

None at this time. 

Projects on Hold: 

HTF Hydraulic Tubes & Fittings – 524 McCormick St. 
General Information – Construction of a 3,645 sq. ft. building addition and resurfacing of the 
existing parking lot at the existing site. 

Project Status – The site plan was received on Sept. 29, 2020. Site plans were approved on Nov. 
10, 2020. The Building Department has revoked their Temporary Certificate of Occupancy. The 
City is waiting for construction to be completed in accordance with the approved site plan. 

building permit is ready for applicant pick-up.  



     MEMORANDUM             
 

                                           CITY OF LAPEER POLICE DEPARTMENT ITEM K-1-6 
 
 
TO:   Mike Womack, City Manager   
 
FROM: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police  
 
DATE: 05/14/24 
 
RE: Monthly Report: April 1 – April 30, 2024  
 
In the month of April 2024, our Police Department Officers responded to 1008 calls for service.  Of these 
907 calls for service, 133 or approximately 14% were criminal activity reports, of which 44 required 
submissions to the Michigan Incident Crime Reporting System (MICRS).  Our officers made 33 arrests in 
April, 10 felony crimes and 23 arrests were misdemeanor crimes. With 1 arrest for operating under the 
influence of alcohol or drugs.  

This month our officers made 335 traffics stops, issued 32 citations, and gave 302 verbal warnings.  Officers 
also handled 46 vehicle crashes. 

There were no overdose cases reported in the month of April.  

Department members attended 96 hours of advanced police training outside of the police department which 
included the following: Background investigations, Advanced K-9 training, Women in Law Enforcement, and 
FTO Instructor School. Department members also had numerous on-line course that were mandated for the 
month of April which included: Anti-Bias, Interacting with Mental Health, Law Enforcement Stress Indicators, 
Ethics in Law Enforcement, Unarmed Subject Control Tactics and Spike Strip Deployment.     

Code Enforcement for the month of April totaled 67 contacts.  The majority of the violations were signs with 
36.  Others included grass-weeds, blight, improper parking, improper registration, inoperable vehicle, and 
improper parking.   

The month of April also had 35 hours of overtime.  Most of the overtime was contributed to training which 
officers to as comp time to help reduce the cost to the city.  The remaining overtime was attributed to court.   

The month of April was very busy for the police department.  As we continue to get closer to accreditation 
the amount of work has increased in order to get it done before summer.  We are currently at 95% completed 
and waiting on a date for the on-site assessment through the Michigan Chiefs of Police.  We were also busy 
getting all the electrical installed and computer infrastructure completed for the body worn cameras.  That 
project is completed other than on-sight training from Motorola.  Motorola had to push out our date until July 
for the training, after that we will be fully operational with the body worn cameras.       

 

 



Current Calendar Year Previous Year
Month To Date To Date

Complaints Received and Investigated 1008 3731 3449
District Court Fines Received 1,236.51$      5,135.79$                 3,834.93$                         
OUIL-Cost of Prosecution 140.00$         1,410.00$                 615.00$                            
Charges for Copies of Police Reports 132.90$         543.80$                    772.00$                            

ACCIDENTS:

Fatal 0 0 0
Property Damage 27 103 101
Private Property Damage 18 62 64
Personal Injury 1 15 18

ARRESTS:

Misdemeanor 23 76 52
Felony 10 47 21

HEROIN/OVERDOSE INCIDENTS:

Heroin Possession/Usage 0 0 2
Overdose 0 0 2
Overdose Deaths 0 0 0

Lapeer City Police Department
Monthly Report 

APRIL 2024

   

 

 

 CITY MANAGER REVIEW 
 
Meeting Date:  05/20/24 
 
Date of Review:  
 
Completed by Mike Womack, City Manager 



ITEM K-1-7





































MEDICAL MARIHUANA LICENSES 
PROVISIONING CENTER - GROWER – PROCESSOR –  

SECURE TRANSPORTER – SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY 
Approved Licenses:              Updated:  April 2024 

Applicant Name DBA Address License Status 
PROVISIONING CENTERS     
DNVK Lapeer Inc The Pier Provisioning Center 2401 W Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 06-11-24 
The Pure Lapeer, LLC Pure Lapeer 1330 Imlay City Road Units C&D Facility App:  Exp 06-21-24 
TRC Lapeer LLC The ReLeaf Center of Lapeer 200 E Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 10-23-24 
Alternative RX, LLC Xplore Cannabis 824 S Main Street Facility App:  Exp 10-30-24 
Ox Tail, Inc. Heads 111 W Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 11-19-24 
SPMI LLC Shango Lapeer 224 E Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 12-12-24 
FB Lapeer PRV, LLC The Jazz Club Center 1333 Imlay City Road Provisional App:  Exp 10-26-24 
     
GROWER     
Ka Ulu Ana LLC #1 Ka Ulu Ana LLC 244 S Court Street Facility  – Class C App:  Exp 08-04-24 
Green Thumb Growers Green Thumb Growers 840 Whitney Prov – Class A App:  Exp 10-24-24 
 
PROCESSOR     
Berry Green Management, Inc. Berry Green Management, Inc 1330 Imlay City Road Facility App:  Exp 08-28-24 
Northwest Confections   

Michigan LLC WYLD 525 S. Court Street, Suite 110 Facility App:  Exp 10-07-24 
Berry Green Management, Inc Berry Green Management, Inc 1356 Imlay City Road Facility App:  Exp 12-11-24 
     
 
SECURE TRANSPORTER 

    

None.     
SAFETY COMPLIANCE 

FACILITY 
    

None.     
  



ADULT USE MARIHUANA LICENSES 
PROVISIONING CENTER – GROWER – PROCESSOR –  

SECURE TRANSPORTER – SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY 
Approved Licenses:              Updated:  April 2024 

Applicant Name DBA Address License Status 
     
PROVISIONING CENTERS     
DNVK Lapeer Inc The Pier Provisioning Center 2401 W Genesee St Facility App: Exp 11-19-24 
The Pure Lapeer, LLC Pure Lapeer 1330 Imlay City Road Units C&D Facility App: Exp 12-03-24 
TRC Lapeer LLC The ReLeaf Center of Lapeer 200 E Genesee St Facility App: Exp 12-03-24 
Ox Tail, Inc. Heads 111 W Genesee St Facility App: Exp 12-16-24 
SPMI, LLC Shango Lapeer 224 E. Genesee St Facility App: Exp 12-15-24 
Alternative RX Xplore  824 S. Main St. Facility App: Exp 12-21-24 
     
GROWER     
Farmboyz, LLC  1428 Imlay City Road Prov – Class B App: Exp 07-30-24 
Ka Ulu Ana LLC #1  244 S. Court St Facility  – Class C App: Exp 10-15-24 
Ka Ulu Ana LLC #2  244 S. Court St Facility  – Class C App: Exp 10-15-24 
Fresh Water Gardens, LLC  39 W. Genesee Prov – Class C App: Exp 12-16-24 
SDRK Group, LLC #1  207 S. Saginaw St. Facility  – Class C App: Exp 12-18-24 
SDRK Group, LLC #2  207 S. Saginaw St. Facility  – Class C App: Exp 12-18-24 
SDRK Group, LLC #3  207 S. Saginaw St. Facility  – Class C App: Exp 02-12-25 
Old School Organics, LLC Old School Organics, LLC 350 County Center Street Facility  – Class C App: Exp 04-08-25 
     
PROCESSOR     
Berry Green Management, Inc. Berry Green Management, Inc 1330 Imlay City Rd, Ste F-G-H Facility App:  Exp 08-28-24 
Ka Ulu Ana, LLC  244 S. Court St Facility App:  Exp 09-27-24 
Northwest Confections Michigan  WYLD 525 S. Court Street, Suite 110 Facility App:  Exp 10-07-24 
Berry Green Management   1356 Imlay City Road Facility App:  Exp 01-05-25 
Atwater Management LLC Culture Complex 525 S. Court St., Suite 120 Facility App:  Exp 01-25-25 
     
SECURE TRANSPORTER     
None.     
SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY    
None.     

 



CITY OF LAPEER, 576 LIBERTY PARK, LAPEER, LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN 48446 
2024 MEETING DATES 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.261 et. Seq., notice is hereby given that every meeting of the City Council, Boards, Authorities and Commissions of the 
City of Lapeer shall be open to the public.  Notice is further given that the following City Council, Boards, Authorities and Commissions are regular meeting dates for 2024.  A 
public notice of each special or rescheduled meeting will be posted at least 18 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 

Board/Commission Location Time January February March April May June July August September October November December 
City Commission Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 2, 16 5, 20 4, 18 1, 15 6, 20 3, 17 1, 15 5, 19 3, 16 7, 21 4, 18 2, 16 

1st & 3rd Monday   of each Month 
Cemetery Board 

3rd Thursday of Oct 
Mt. Hope Cemetery 
Building 

2:00 P.M. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 17 -- -- 

Downtown Development 
 Authority 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M. 24 28 27 24 22 26 24 28 25 23 27 25 

4th Wednesday   of each Month 
Economic Development Corp 
(EDC) & Tax Increment 
Finance Auth (TIFA) 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M. 
10 14 13 10 8 12 10 14 11 9 13 11 

2nd Wednesday   As needed 
Housing Commission 

3rd Thursday 
2nd Floor 
Conference Room 

4:00 P.M. 18 15 21 18 16 20 18 15 19 17 21 19 

 of each Month 
Local Development Finance 
Authority (LDFA) 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M 5 4 3 3 

1st Tuesday March/June/Sept/ Dec as Needed 
Park Board -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 6 -- 
Planning Commission Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 11 8 14 11 9 13 11 8 12 10 14 12 

2nd Thursday of each Month 
Zoning Board of Appeals Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 22 26 25 22 27 24 22 26 23 28 25 23 

4th Monday of each Month 

Address of the above locations are as follows: 
Commission Chambers:    City Hall, 576 Liberty Park 
Mt. Hope Cemetery:          1230 Park Street 

Romona Sanchez, CMC 
City Clerk 

City of Lapeer  
576 Liberty Park, Lapeer  
Lapeer County, Michigan  48446   (810) 664-5231 

N-1



MAT. TRANS.   

 

To: City Commission 
Date: May 20, 2024 
RE: Material Transmittals 

 
1. None. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	City Commission Agenda - 05-20-24
	A-1 Minutes 05-06-2024 Regular
	C-1 Uniform Video - Franchise Agree
	C-2 Fixed Asset Disposal - 1991 Ford Brush Truck
	C-3 Fixed Asset Disposal - 2018 Ford Utility
	C-4 Fixed Asset Disposal - 2016 Ford Utility
	C-5 Fixed Asset Disposal - 2016 Backhoe with attachments
	C-6 Fixed Asset Disposal - 2016 Wheeled Loader
	C-7 Fixed Asset Disposal - 2005 Cummins Onan Generator
	C-8 SE - Great Lakes Music Recital 2024
	C-9 SE - Memorial Day Parade 2024
	C-10 DTE Easement
	C-11 Delinquent Special Assessments
	C-12 Boundary Transfer - Zock
	C-13 Charitable Gaming License-Love Inc.
	D-1  Bill Listing 05-20-2024
	G-1 Budget Amendment FY2023-24
	G-2 Commit to Purch Cat Loader
	G-3 Rowden Park Pathway Project-Spark Grant
	G-4 Sidewalk Repair Contract
	G-5 Parking lot #5
	H-1 Freshwater Gardens
	J-1 Boards and Commissions
	K- Monthly Reports 5-20-2024
	N-1 2024  Bds & Comm Meeting Dates
	Q Mat Trans - 05-20-2024



